# THE AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL UNIVERSITY

# **Higher Doctorates Rule 2015**

I, Professor Ian Young AO, Vice-Chancellor of the Australian National University, make the following rule.

Dated 6 November 2015

Professor Ian Young AO Vice-Chancellor



# Contents

Part 1—	– Preliminary		1
	1	Name	1
	2	Commencement	
	3	Authority	
	4	Definitions	
Part 2—	- Higher doct	orate degrees	2
	5	Higher doctorate degrees conferred by University	2
	6	Vice-Chancellor approval for higher doctorate degrees	
Part 3—	- Candidates	for doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine	3
	7	Application to become candidate: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine	3
	8	Establishment and proceedings of panel: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicin	
	9	Initial assessment and recommendation by panel: doctorates other than Doctor o Medicine	f
	10	Admission of applicant as candidate: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine	5
	11	Submission of works by candidate: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine	5
	12	Examination of submitted works: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine	6
	13	Recommendation by panel on submitted works: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine	6
	14	Recommendation by Deputy Vice-Chancellor: doctorates other than Doctor of	7
_		Medicine	
Part 4—	- Candidates	for Doctor of Medicine	8
	15	Application to become candidate: Doctor of Medicine	8
	16	Establishment and proceedings of panel: Doctor of Medicine	
	17	Initial assessment and recommendation by panel: Doctor of Medicine	
	18	Admission of applicant as candidate: Doctor of Medicine	
	19	Submission of works by candidate: Doctor of Medicine	
	20	Examination of submitted works: Doctor of Medicine	
	21	Recommendation by panel on submitted works: Doctor of Medicine	. 11
	22	Recommendation by Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Doctor of Medicine	
Part 5—	- Miscellaneo	us	13
	23	Approved forms	. 13
	24	Repeal	. 13



# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1 Name

This is the Higher Doctorates Rule 2015.

#### 2 Commencement

This instrument commences on the day after it is registered.

#### 3 Authority

This instrument is made under section 8 of the *Programs and Awards Statute 2013*.

Note

Under section 50(3) of the *Australian University Act 1991* a statute may empower any authority or officer of the University to make rules or orders. Section 9.5 of the Vice-Chancellorship Statute authorises the Vice-Chancellor to make rules and orders for a number of statutes, including the Programs and Awards Statute.]

#### 4 Definitions

In this instrument:

higher doctorate means a degree that the University may confer under section 5.

*published* work means work that is readily available for public criticism.

work includes the following:

- (a) a book or article, however published;
- (b) other printed material;
- (c) a composition or recording of music;
- (d) a video recording, film or other work of visual or sonic art;
- (e) an exhibition, performance or folio of work;
- (f) computer software, digital material or other non-written material.

# Part 2—Higher doctorate degrees

# 5 Higher doctorate degrees conferred by University

- (1) This section specifies under section 3 of the *Programs and Awards Statute 2013* the higher doctorate degrees that the University may confer.
- (2) The University may confer the following higher doctorate degrees:
  - (a) Doctor of Fine Arts (DFA);
  - (b) Doctor of Laws (LLD);
  - (c) Doctor of Letters (DLitt);
  - (d) Doctor of Medicine (MD);
  - (e) Doctor of Music (DMus);
  - (f) Doctor of Science (DSc).

## 6 Vice-Chancellor approval for higher doctorate degrees

The Vice-Chancellor may approve the award of higher doctorate degrees on the recommendation of the Deputy Vice-Chancellor.

## Part 3—Candidates for doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

### 7 Application to become candidate: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

- (1) A person may apply to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor to be admitted as a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Fine Arts, Doctor of Laws, Doctor of Letters, Doctor of Music or Doctor of Science.
- (2) The application must:
  - (a) be in writing; and
  - (b) state the higher doctorate for which admission as a candidate is sought; and
  - (c) include complete details of the person's qualifications and, if relevant, professional experience.
  - [Note 1: If a form is approved under s 23 (Approved forms) for this provision, the form must be used.]
  - [Note 2: Giving false or misleading information, or producing a false or misleading document, may be a criminal offence against the Criminal Code.]
- (3) However, if the person applied at any time during the previous 5 years to be admitted as a candidate for a higher doctorate, the person may make an application under this section only if the Deputy Vice-Chancellor agrees that the application may be made in the exceptional circumstances of the case.
- (4) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor may, by written notice given to the applicant, require the applicant to provide any information or document that the Deputy Vice-Chancellor reasonably needs to consider the application.
- (5) If the Deputy Vice-Chancellor requires the applicant to provide information or a document, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor need not consider the application until the applicant complies with the requirement.
- (6) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor may, in writing, determine procedures to be followed by an applicant under this Part to be admitted as a candidate for a higher doctorate.

### 8 Establishment and proceedings of panel: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if a person applies under this Part to be admitted as a candidate for a higher doctorate.
- (2) The applicant is eligible to be considered for admission as a candidate for the higher doctorate if:
  - (a) the applicant:
    - (i) holds a degree of the University; or
    - (ii) holds an award of another university that, in the Deputy Vice-Chancellor's opinion, is equivalent to a degree of the University; or
    - (iii) the applicant is, in the Deputy Vice-Chancellor's opinion, otherwise qualified to be a candidate because of the applicant's eminence in learning or creative achievements; and
  - (b) the applicant:

- (i) is a full-time member of the academic staff of the University and, during the previous 10 years, has been employed as a full-time member of the academic staff of the University for a total at least 3 years; or
- (ii) has, or has had, a connection with the University that, in the Deputy Vice-Chancellor's opinion, is at least as equivalent as the connection mentioned in subparagraph (i).
- (3) If the applicant is eligible to be considered for admission as a candidate for the higher doctorate, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor must establish a panel for the application.
- (4) If the applicant is not eligible to be considered for admission as a candidate for the higher doctorate, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor must, by written notice given to the applicant, tell the applicant that the applicant is not eligible to be considered for admission as a candidate for the higher doctorate.
- (5) If the Deputy Vice-Chancellor is to establish a panel for the application, the panel must consist of the following members:
  - (a) the Deputy Vice-Chancellor or a person nominated, in writing, by the Deputy Vice-Chancellor;
  - (b) 3 staff members of the University appointed, in writing, by the Deputy Vice-Chancellor who have, in the Deputy Vice-Chancellor's opinion, appropriate expertise in all or part of the field of the applicant's work;
  - (c) the Associate Dean of each ANU College that has coverage of all or part of the field of the applicant's work.
- (6) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor or the Deputy Vice-Chancellor's nominee under subsection (5)(a) is the chair of the panel.
- (7) The panel must conduct its proceedings (including its meetings) as the Deputy Vice-Chancellor directs in writing.
- (8) Subject to this instrument and to any directions of the Deputy Vice-Chancellor under subsection (7), the panel may conduct its proceeding (including its meetings) as it considers appropriate.

# 9 Initial assessment and recommendation by panel: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if the Deputy Vice-Chancellor establishes a panel under this Part for an application made by a person to be admitted as a candidate for a higher doctorate.
- (2) The panel must assess whether the applicant's published work appears, *prima facie*, to be worthy of examination for the higher doctorate.
- (3) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor may, in writing, require or permit the panel to obtain stated information in relation to the application.
- (4) The panel must make its assessment having regard to the applicant's application and any information obtained under subsection (3).
- (5) Without limiting subsections (3) and (4), the panel must not seek referee reports for the applicant unless it is required or permitted to do so under subsection (3).

- (6) If the panel's assessment is that the applicant's published work appears, *prima facie*, to be worthy of examination for the higher doctorate, the panel must recommend to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the applicant be admitted as a candidate for the higher doctorate.
- (7) If the panel's assessment is that the applicant's published work does not appear, *prima facie*, to be worthy of examination for the higher doctorate, the panel must recommend to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the applicant not be admitted as a candidate for the higher doctorate.
- (8) If the panel recommends that the applicant not be admitted as a candidate for the higher doctorate, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor must, by written notice given to the applicant, tell the applicant that the applicant has not been admitted as a candidate for the higher doctorate.

### 10 Admission of applicant as candidate: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if:
  - (a) a panel is established under this Part for an application made by a person to be admitted as a candidate for a higher doctorate; and
  - (b) the panel recommends that the person be admitted as a candidate for the higher doctorate.
- (2) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor must admit the person as a candidate for the higher doctorate.
- (3) If the Deputy Vice-Chancellor admits the person as a candidate, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor must tell the person and the Registrar that the person has been admitted as a candidate for the higher doctorate.

### 11 Submission of works by candidate: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if a person (the *candidate*) is admitted under this Part as a candidate for a higher doctorate.
- (2) The candidate must submit to the Registrar 4 paper copies and 1 digital copy of published works, of which the candidate is the author or joint author, that are to be examined for the award of the higher doctorate.
- (3) However, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor may, in writing:
  - (a) approve the submission of all or part of the candidate's published works in another format and determine the number of copies to be given to the Registrar by the candidate in that format; or
  - (b) determine that the candidate give the Registrar a different number of paper copies of the published works.
- (4) To remove any doubt, subsection (3) does not affect the candidate's obligation under subsection (2) to submit 1 digital copy of the published works.
- (5) The candidate must not submit any material that has been previously submitted by the candidate for the purpose of obtaining a degree from any university or other tertiary educational institution.

- (6) If the candidate is the joint author of any of the submitted works, the candidate must give the Deputy Vice-Chancellor:
  - (a) a written statement that clearly indicates the parts of the works of which the candidate is the author; and
  - (b) the supporting material that the Deputy Vice-Chancellor requires by written notice given to the candidate.

#### 12 Examination of submitted works: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if a candidate for a higher doctorate under this Part submits works for examination for the award of the higher doctorate.
- (2) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor must, in writing, appoint at least 3 examiners to examine the submitted works.
- (3) Each person appointed as examiner must have international standing and not hold an academic or honorary academic appointment of the University.
- (4) The examiners may require the candidate to attend an oral examination at a time and place decided by the examiners.
- (5) Each examiner must give the Registrar a written report on the examiner's examination of the submitted works.
  - [Note: If a form is approved under s 23 (Approved forms) for this provision, the form must be used.]
- (6) The report must recommend that the candidate be granted or not granted the higher doctorate.

# 13 Recommendation by panel on submitted works: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if the submitted works of a candidate for a higher doctorate are examined under this Part.
- (2) The Registrar must give a copy of the examiners' reports to the panel established for the candidate's application to be admitted as a candidate for the higher doctorate.
- (3) The panel must consider the examiners' reports.
- (4) The panel must recommend to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the candidate be granted the higher doctorate if, after considering the examiners' reports, the panel is of the opinion that the submitted works:
  - (a) represent outstanding creative achievement or an outstanding contribution to the field of knowledge in which the submitted works fall; or
  - (b) exhibit a level of originality that stamp the candidate as a major authority in that field.
- (5) The panel must recommend to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the candidate not be granted the higher doctorate if, after considering the examiners' reports, the panel is not of the opinion mentioned in subsection (4).
- (6) If the panel recommends to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the candidate not be granted the higher doctorate, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor must, by written notice given to the applicant, tell the applicant that the applicant is not to be awarded the higher doctorate.

# 14 Recommendation by Deputy Vice-Chancellor: doctorates other than Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if the panel established under this Part for a candidate's application to be admitted as a candidate for a higher doctorate recommends to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the candidate be granted the higher doctorate.
- (2) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor must consider the examiners' reports and the panel's recommendation.
- (3) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor must recommend to the Vice-Chancellor that the candidate be awarded the higher doctorate if, after considering the examiners' reports and the panel's recommendation, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor is of the opinion that the submitted works:
  - (a) represent outstanding creative achievement or an outstanding contribution to the field of knowledge in which the submitted works fall; or
  - (b) exhibit a level of originality that stamp the candidate as a major authority in that field.
- (4) If, after considering the examiners' reports and the panel's recommendation, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor is not of the opinion mentioned in subsection (3), the Deputy Vice-Chancellor must, by written notice given to the candidate, tell the candidate that the candidate is not to be awarded the higher doctorate.

# Part 4—Candidates for Doctor of Medicine

### 15 Application to become candidate: Doctor of Medicine

- (1) A person may apply to the Dean of the ANU Medical School to be admitted as a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine.
- (2) The application must:
  - (a) be in writing; and
  - (b) include complete details of the person's qualifications and, if relevant, professional experience.
  - [Note 1: If a form is approved under s 23 (Approved forms) for this provision, the form must be used.]
  - [Note 2: Giving false or misleading information, or producing a false or misleading document, may be a criminal offence against the Criminal Code.]
- (3) However, if the person applied at any time during the previous 5 years to be admitted as a candidate for the degree, the person may make an application under this section only if the Dean agrees that the application may be made in the exceptional circumstances of the case.
- (4) The Dean may, by written notice given to the applicant, require the applicant to provide any information or document that the Dean reasonably needs to consider the application.
- (5) If the Dean requires the applicant to provide information or a document, the Dean need not consider the application until the applicant complies with the requirement.
- (6) The Dean may, in writing, determine procedures to be followed by an applicant to be admitted as a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine.

#### 16 Establishment and proceedings of panel: Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if a person applies under this Part to be admitted as a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine.
- (2) The applicant is eligible to be considered for admission as a candidate for the degree if:
  - (a) the applicant:
    - (i) holds a medical degree of the University, and has held that degree for at least 5 years; or
    - (ii) holds a similar degree of another university that, in the Dean's opinion, is equivalent to a medical degree of the University, and has held that degree for at least 5 years; or
    - (iii) the applicant is, in the Dean's opinion, otherwise qualified to be a candidate because of the applicant's eminence in learning or creative achievements; and
  - (b) the applicant:

- (i) is a full-time member of the academic staff of the University and, during the previous 10 years, has been employed as a full-time member of the academic staff of the University for a total of at least 3 years; or
- (ii) has, or has had, a connection with the University that, in the Dean's opinion, is at least as equivalent as the connection mentioned in subparagraph (i).
- (3) If the applicant is eligible to be considered for admission as a candidate for the degree, the Dean must establish a panel for the application.
- (4) If the applicant is not eligible to be considered for admission as a candidate for the degree, the Dean must, by written notice given to the applicant, tell the applicant that the applicant is not eligible to be considered for admission as a candidate for the degree.
- (5) If the Dean is to establish a panel for the application, the panel must consist of the following members:
  - (a) the Dean or a person nominated, in writing, by the Dean;
  - (b) 3 staff members of the University appointed, in writing, by the Dean who have, in the Dean's opinion, appropriate expertise in all or part of the field of the applicant's work.
- (6) The Dean or the Dean's nominee under subsection (5)(a) is the chair of the panel.
- (7) The panel must conduct its proceedings (including its meetings) as the Dean directs in writing.
- (8) Subject to this instrument and to any directions of the Dean under subsection (7), the panel may conduct its proceeding (including its meetings) as it considers appropriate.
- (9) In this section:

*medical degree*, of the University, means any of the following degrees:

- (a) Bachelor of Medicine, Bachelor of Surgery;
- (b) Medicinae ac Chirurgiae Doctoranda;
- (c) Doctor of Medicine and Surgery.

### 17 Initial assessment and recommendation by panel: Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if the Dean of the ANU Medical School establishes a panel under this Part for an application made by a person to be admitted as a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine.
- (2) The panel must assess whether the applicant's published work appears, *prima facie*, to be worthy of examination for the degree.
- (3) The Dean may, in writing, require or permit the panel to obtain stated information in relation to the application.
- (4) The panel must make its assessment having regard to the applicant's application and any information obtained under subsection (3).
- (5) Without limiting subsections (3) and (4), the panel must not seek referee reports for the applicant unless it is required or permitted to do so under subsection (3).

- (6) If the panel's assessment is that the applicant's published work appears, *prima facie*, to be worthy of examination for the degree, the panel must recommend to the Dean that the applicant be admitted as a candidate for the degree.
- (7) If the panel's assessment is that the applicant's published work does not appear, *prima facie*, to be worthy of examination for the degree, the panel must recommend to the Dean that the applicant not be admitted as a candidate for the degree.
- (8) If the panel recommends that the applicant not be admitted as a candidate for the degree, the Dean must, by written notice given to the applicant, tell the applicant that the applicant has not been admitted as a candidate for the degree.

#### 18 Admission of applicant as candidate: Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if:
  - (a) a panel is established under this Part for an application made by a person to be admitted as a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine; and
  - (b) the panel recommends that the person be admitted as a candidate for the degree.
- (2) The Dean of the ANU Medical School must admit the person as a candidate for the degree.
- (3) If the Dean admits the person as a candidate, the Dean must tell the person and the Registrar that the person has been admitted as a candidate for the degree.

### 19 Submission of works by candidate: Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if a person (the *candidate*) is admitted under this Part as a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine.
- (2) The candidate must submit to the Registrar 4 paper copies and 1 digital copy of published works, of which the candidate is the author or joint author, that are to be examined for the award of the degree.
- (3) However, the Dean of the ANU Medical School may, in writing:
  - (a) approve the submission of all or part of the candidate's published works in another format and determine the number of copies to be given to the Registrar by the candidate in that format; or
  - (b) determine that the candidate give the Registrar a different number of paper copies of the published works.
- (4) To remove any doubt, subsection (3) does not affect the candidate's obligation under subsection (2) to submit 1 digital copy of the published works.
- (5) The candidate must not submit any material that has been previously submitted by the candidate for the purpose of obtaining a degree from any university or other tertiary educational institution.
- (6) If the candidate is the joint author of any of the submitted works, the candidate must give the Dean:
  - (a) a written statement that clearly indicates the parts of the works of which the candidate is the author; and
  - (b) the supporting material that the Dean requires by written notice given to the candidate.

#### 20 Examination of submitted works: Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine under this Part submits works for examination for the award of the degree.
- (2) The Dean of the ANU Medical School must, in writing, appoint at least 3 examiners to examine the submitted works.
- (3) Each person appointed as examiner must have international standing and not hold an academic or honorary academic appointment of the University.
- (4) The examiners may require the candidate to attend an oral examination at a time and place decided by the examiners.
- (5) Each examiner must give the Dean a written report on the examiner's examination of the submitted works.
  - [Note: If a form is approved under s 23 (Approved forms) for this provision, the form must be used.]
- (6) The report must recommend that the candidate be granted or not granted the degree of Doctor of Medicine.

#### 21 Recommendation by panel on submitted works: Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if the submitted works of a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine are examined under this Part.
- (2) The Dean of the ANU Medical School must give a copy of the examiners' reports to the panel established for the candidate's application to be admitted as a candidate for the degree.
- (3) The panel must consider the examiners' reports.
- (4) The panel must recommend to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the candidate be granted the degree if, after considering the examiners' reports, the panel is of the opinion that the submitted works:
  - (a) represent a substantial, original and important contribution to the advancement of medical knowledge on a coherent theme; and
  - (b) are of sufficient merit for conferral of the degree.
- (5) The panel must recommend to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the candidate not be granted the degree if, after considering the examiners' reports, the panel is not of the opinion mentioned in subsection (4).
- (6) If the panel recommends to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the candidate not be granted the degree, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor must, by written notice given to the applicant, tell the applicant that the applicant is not to be awarded the degree.

#### 22 Recommendation by Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Doctor of Medicine

- (1) This section applies if the panel established under this Part for a candidate's application to be admitted as a candidate for the degree of Doctor of Medicine recommends to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor that the candidate be granted the degree.
- (2) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor must consider the examiners' reports and the panel's recommendation.

- (3) The Deputy Vice-Chancellor must recommend to the Vice-Chancellor that the candidate be awarded the degree if, after considering the examiners' reports and the panel's recommendation, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor is of the opinion that the submitted works:
  - (a) represent a substantial, original and important contribution to the advancement of medical knowledge on a coherent theme; and
  - (b) are of sufficient merit for conferral of the degree.
- (4) If, after considering the examiners' reports and the panel's recommendation, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor is not of the opinion mentioned in subsection (3), the Deputy Vice-Chancellor must, by written notice given to the candidate, tell the candidate that the candidate is not to be awarded the degree.

# Part 5—Miscellaneous

# 23 Approved forms

- (1) The Registrar may, in writing, approve forms for this instrument.
- (2) If the Registrar approves a form for a particular purpose, the form must be used for that purpose.
- (3) The Registrar must ensure that approved forms are publicly available on the University's website or any other way that the Registrar considers appropriate.

## 24 Repeal

The Higher Doctorates Rules (No. 2) 2014 are repealed.